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The Board of Directors

New Saraswati House India Private Limited,
A-27, 2nd Floor Mohan cooperative Industrial Estate,

Delhi-110 044

Sir,

Sub: Communication of UDIN for audited standalone financial statement for the FY 2022-23

As per the guidelines issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) for the audits,
we are required to generate UDIN and to communicate such generated UDIN to “Management” or
“Those Charged with Governance” for disseminating it to the stakeholders from their end.
Accordingly, please find below UDIN for audited standalone financial statement for the FY 2022-23

signed by us on May 25, 2023.

UDIN: 23518499BGWQWG3165

for J P Chawla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 001875N/N5000

TR

Per Richa Chawla O3
“?ED
(Partner)

Membership No. 518499

Place: Noida
Date: 29-05-2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF NEW SARASWATI HOUSE (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NEW SARASWATI HOUSE
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “standalone

financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its profit, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
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Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone
financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The Board of Director’s report is not made available to
us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

® Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
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other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our Opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the Basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company, accordingly
compliances with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 need not to be complied
with by the Company.

2) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

ForJ P Chawla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 001875N/N5000

Partner

Membership No. 518499
Place: Noida
Date: 25" May 2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of sub- section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NEW SARASWATI HOUSE
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the “ICAI"”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by'othe Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Agudii of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAL

For J P Chawla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountangs
FRN. 001875N/N500025

per Richa Chawla
Partner

Membership No. 518499
Place: Noida
Date: 25" May 2023
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of New Saraswati house (India) Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i.  Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
(a)(1) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and
right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the
year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in the property plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c ) of the order not applicable to the
company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right- of-
use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage and the procedures of verification are materially appropriate and all
material discrepancies of 10 % or more noticed on physical verification of inventories have
been properly dealt within the books of accounts.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of X 5 crore, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or
statements filed to the HDFC Bank, RBL Bank and State Bank of India (SBI) by the Company
are not in agreement with the books of accounts of the company. The summary of differences
is: -
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A. Quarter ended 30" June 2022

(X in millions)

Particulars As pe_r statement As per books of Difference
filed with bank (A) accounts (B) ~ (A-B)
Inventory 261.29 259.98 1.30
Trade receivables 421.52 420.50 1.02
Trade payables 146.97 249.09 -102.12
B. Quarter ended 30" September 2022
(X in millions)
Particulars As per statement As per books of Difference
filed with bank (A) accounts (B) (A-B)
Inventory 388.40 367.63 20.77
Trade receivables 260.00 256.94 | 3.06 |
Trade payables 148.78 263.98 -115.20 ’

C. Quarter ended 31 December 2022

(X in millions)

Particulars As per statement As per books of Difference
filed with bank (A) accounts (B) (A-B)
Inventory 468.54 474.28 -5.74
Trade receivables 244.93 243.36 1.57
Trade payables 261.74 385.51 -123.77

D. Quarter ended 31* March 2023

(X in millions)

Particulars As per statement As per books of Difference
filed with bank (A) accounts (B) (A-B)
Inventory 347.15 362.41 -15.27
Trade receivables 588.17 586.91 i 1.26
Trade payables 269.47 402.09 132.62

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not made any
investment, guarantee or security and neither granted any advances in the nature of loan
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties.
Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(iii)(a) to (f) of the order are not applicable to the
company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no
loan, investment, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section
185 and 186 of the companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from public or does not have any amount which
is deemed to be deposit within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Act and the companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v)
of the order are not applicable.

J P Chawla & Co. LLP is registered with limited
liability with identification number AAE-2281,
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vi.

vii.

viil.

J P Chawla & Co. LLP is registered with limited
liability with identification number AAE-2281,
Regd. off. at 43, Daryaganj, New Delhi 110002, India

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried
out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees State insurance, Income tax, Goods
and services tax, cess and Other statutory dues applicable to it. The provision relating to
excise duty are not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, service tax,
goods & services tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except the

following:

Name of Nature of | Amount | Period Due dates | Date of | Remarks,
the Dues (Rs.) to payment if any
Statute which
the
amount
relates
Provident | Employees 3,893 | April 15/05/2022 | Not paid Due to
Fund Contribution 2022 Aadhar
towards - | linking
Provident 3,893 | May 15/06/2022 | Not paid sl
Fund 2022 |
3,893 | June 15/07/2022 | Not paid RN
2022 |
3,893 | July 15/08/2022 | Not paid
2022 ]
4,476 | August 15/09/2022 | Not paid
] 2022

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income
tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, value added tax and cess which have not been

deposited on account of any dispute.

According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
books of account, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a
financial institution or bank. The company does not have outstanding borrowings against
government or dues to debenture holders.

Web: www.jpc.co.in

B-151, 3rd Fir, Sector-6, Noida 201301, U.P. India
Tel 491 120 4573207 E-mail: info@jpc.co.in



] P Chawla & Co. LLp

Chartered Accountants

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) Based on our Audit, The Company has applied the term loan for the purpose for which it is
obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

subsidiaries.

(f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, The Company has
not raised any loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, Joint
Ventures and Associates companies.

% (a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible).
However, the company has issued share to its holding company against conversion of
optionally convertible loan of X 80 million which is not considered as preferential allotment
or private placement of shares. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the requirements of section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have
been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the
funds were raised.

Xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to
us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported

during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

Xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.
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xiii. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting
under clause xiii in so far as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with the section 188 of the companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till the date of audit report, in determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures.

XV. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

XVi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and as represented to us, there is no core investment company within the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

XX. The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

J P Chawla & Co. LLP is registered with limited B-151, 3rd Flr, Sector-6, Noida 201301, U.P. India
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XXi. This is report on standalone financial statement of the company. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For J P Chawla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

per Richa Chawla
Partner

Membership No. 518499
Place: Noida
Date: 25" May 2023
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

(T in millions)

As at

Summary of significant accounting policies

Particulars
N 31st March 2023 315t March 2022
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment 3 32.89 29.3]
Goodwill 4A 56.73 . 56.73
Other intangible assets 4A 53,38 77.25
Right to Use Assets 4B 74.01 80.28
Financial asscts
- Loans 5B .57 6.30
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5D 0.10 010
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 183,90 205.01
Other non-current assets 7 1.56 1.60
Total non-current assets . 406.14 456,58
Current assets
Inventories 6 36241 269.22
Financial assets
- Trade receivables S5A 586.91 578.40
- Loans 5B 12.02 8.7
- Cash and cash equivalents 5C 0.66 4,05
Income tax assets (net) 7 0.14 0.1
Other current assels r 12.65 6.33
Total current assets 974.79 866,82
Total assets 1,380.93 1,323.40
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 9 142.21 136.68
Other equity .
- Retained eamings 10 (565.84) (657.40)
- General reserves 10 390.00 390.00
- Other reserves 10 747.63 672.84
Total equity 714,00 542.12
Non-current linbilities
Financial liabilitics
- Borrowings LA 1538 221.30
- Lease liability R 63.58 69.50
Provisions 14 8.40 425
Total non current liabilitics 87.36 295.05
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 1B 104.39 75.89
- Lease liability 138 25.52 23.74
- Trade payables
'Trade payables of micro enterprises and small enterprises 12 107.84 30.27
‘Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 12 294.25 312,78
- Other financial liabilities 13A 31.40 23.98
Other current liabilities 15 15.81 19.14
Provisions 14 0.36 0.43
Total current liabilities 579.57 486.23
Total equity and liabilities 1,380.93 1,323.40
21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fi
As per our report of even dale

For J P Chawla & Co. LLP
ICAT Firm Registration No, 001875N,

artered Accountants Q&\\N
Q,
ﬁa\, Che-

per Richa Chawla
Partner
Membership No.: 518499

Place : Noida
Date: May 25, 2023

DIN:0005401 5
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2023

Lf"‘

Chief Excecutive Officer
Place: New Delli
Date: May 25, 2023

For and on behglf of the Board of Directors of

Director
DIN:00054090
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2023

\\-..wva\"\?
—_—_____,_._.——
Narander Kumar
Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2023



New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended 31st March 2023
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

(X in millions)

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Notes As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
I  Revenue from contract with customers 16 1,131.62 893,58
11  Other income 17 14.14 13.88
II Total Income (I+I1) 1,145.76 907.46
IV Expenses
Cost of published goods/raw material consumed 18 435.65 287.81
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 19 (14.53) 25.59
Employee benefit expenses 20 240.56 218,73
Finance cost 21 34.93 48.89
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 56.72 59.10
Publication expenses 23 70.87 59.54
Other expenses 24 , 201.89 174.62
Total expenses 1,026.09 874.28
V  Profit before tax and exceptional items (1LI-IV) 119.67 33.18
VI Exceptional Items - -
VII Profit before tax (V-VI) 119.67 33.18
VIII Tax expense:
Current tax - -
Income tax adjustment related to earlier year . -
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 27a 22.87 (205.61)
Total tax expenses 22.87 (205.61)
IX Profit/Loss for the year (VII-VIII) 96.80 238.79
X  Other Comprehensive Income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 25
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (7.00) 2.39
Tax impact on re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 1.76 (0.60)
X1 Total Comprehensive Profit/Loss for the year (IX+X) 91.56 240.58
Earnings per equity share: 26
(1) Basic 201 8,768
(2) Diluted 7 17
2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For J P Chawla & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 00
Chartercd Accountants P

per Richa Chawla
Partner
Membership No.: 518499

Place : Noida
Date: May 25, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Himdanshu Gupta
irector
DIN:00054015
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2023

i

Shammi Manik

Chief Excecutive Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2023

ati House (India) Private Limited

Ankita.&up4

Director
DIN:00054090
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2023

\\-\\""’\“*‘AD

arander Kumar
Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2023



New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for period ended 31st March 2023
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

(¥ in millions)
Particulars For the period ended For the period ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/Loss before tax 119.67 33.18
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 56.72 59.10
Employee stock option expense 0.32 1.45
Interest expense 33.79 48.75
Interest income (0.04) (0.39)
Interest income on security deposit - (0.83)
Loss on sale of property, plant and requipment 0.03 0.02
Miscellaneous amount written back (3.28) (3.01)
Provision for advances - 0.71
Operating profit before working capital changes 207.21 138.98
Adjustments for changes in working capital :
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (15.99) 22.21
Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current assets and in other (628) 2.09)
current assets
Decrease/(Increase) in non current loans & advances and
(0.58) 1.68
current loans & advances
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories (93.19) (11.97)
(Decrease)/Increase in non current trade payables and 62.48 (62.36)
current trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 7.42 2.49
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (3.33) (4.47)
(Decreasc)/Increase in provisions 4.09 2.95
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 161.83 87.42
Direct tax (paid)/refund (0.03) 0.04
Net cash (used in)/ generated from operation (A) I.SI.SB 87.46
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, capital advances and CWIP (net of capital creditor) (11.02) (2.79)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 0.41 0.04
Interest received 0.04 0.39
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (10.57) (2.36)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of fresh CCPS (conversion of long term unsecured 8032 R
borrowings)
Proceed/(Repayment) for long-term borrowings(net) (205.92) 19.04
Repayment of lease liability including interest (32.88) (32.72)
Repayment of short term borrowings (net) 28.49 (122.28)
Interest paid (24.63) (39.25)
Net cash used in financing activities (©) (154.62) (175.21)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) (3.39) (90.11)
Cash and cash equivalents - at the beginning of the year 4.05 94.16
Cash and cash equivalents - at the end of the year 0.66 4.05

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for period ended 31st March 2023
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

(T in millions)
Particul For the period ended For the period ended
BRI 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Components of cash and cash equivalents ) )
Cash in hand 0.08 0.15
Balance with banks on current accounts 0.58 3.90
Bank Deposits (having maturity period less than 3 monhts from reporting date) - -
Total Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5C) 0.66 4.05
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars Long l:rrm Short term
borrowings borrowings

As at 31st March 2022 221.30 75.89
Cash flows (205.92) 28.49
Non cash changes - -
As at 31st March 2023 15.38 104.38

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For J P Chawla & Co. LLP For and on behalf6f the Board of Directors of

ICAI Firm Registration No. 001875N/N3 3 iHlouse (India) Private Limited

Chartered Accountants Q\ﬁ- =

;\ (}J CJ" e Z
per Richa Chawla Ankita Gupta
Partner Director
DIN:00054015 DIN:00054090

Membership No.: 518499

Place : Noida
Date: May 25, 2023

Place: New Delhi
' Date: May 25, 2023

Shammi Manik

Chief Excecutive Officer

Place: New Delhi

Date: May 25, 2023

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 25, 2023

\\\‘f""""\b
e e
Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 25, 2023




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2023
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

(X in millions)
A. |Share Capital: . Equity Shares Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares®
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up (Share of T 10 each) No. of shares (X in millions No. of shares _(Zin millions)
At 1st April 2021 27,236 0.28 1,36,39,989 136.40
Issued during the year - - - =
t 31 March 2022 27,236 0.28 1,36,39,989 136.40
Issued during the year 5,53,403 5.53 = =
At 3l MII“CE 2023 5;%‘59 5.81 1,36,39,989 136.40
* refer note - ' ) ) >
B. O h_er equity i (% in millions)
' Reserve & Surplus Other Equity items
Particular Retained Securities Deemed Capital “Total
S General reserve
earnings premium account “Contribution
At Ist April 2021 897.98 669.83 390.00 1,56 163.41
Profit for the year 21879 - - - 238.79
(Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year . 1.79 - - - .79
Share based payments/ charge during the year = - - 1.45 1.45
Tuotal Comprehensive Income for the year 240.58 - - 1.45 242.03
Share bused puyments - - - 2 =
Shares issued during the year - - - - -
Transfer from debenture redemption reserve = - - - -
As at 31st March 2022 (657.40) 669.83 390.00 301 405.44
Profit for the year 96.80 - - . - 96.80
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (5.24) - - - (5.24)
Share based payments/ charge during the year - - 0.32 0.32
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 91.56 - - 0.32 91,88
Share based payments - - - - -
Shares issued during the year . - 74.47 - - 74.47
Transfer from debenture redemption reserve ) - - - =
As at 31st March 2023 (565.84) T44.30 390.00 333 571.79
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying noies arc an integral pant of the financial statements.
A per our report of even date

¢ Board of Directors of
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited (the Company) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) financial statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company
only.

The Company is primarily engaged in printing and publication of educational books.
Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for certain following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in “INR” “Indian Rupees” or “¥” and all values are rounded to the nearest Million
(INR 1,000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when:
o It is expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading
e It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting

period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

i



New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.3

24

Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally
the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functmnal currency spot rates at the

date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of profit or
loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments and equity settled employee share based payment plan at fair
value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordetly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for Whl(.h the lowest level input that is significantAo the fair value measurement

is unobservable.




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.5

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant

notes. .
i. Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 2.20)

il. Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 40)
iii. Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (Note 38)
iv. Equity Settled employee share based payment plan (Note 42)

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is

recognised.

Goods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value
added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in Note 2.20.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the

customer, i.e. at the time of handing over goods to the carrier for transportation.

The company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of books,
the company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of Sigmﬁcayancmg components, non-

cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if any). Z




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates. The provision for turnover
discount and cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts with customer provide a right to custpmer of cash
rebate/discount if payment is cleared within specified due dates,

* Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The provision for
anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates as this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration

that can be included in the transaction price.

* Volume rebates

The Company provides volume rebates to certain customers once the value of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely
amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts with
more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected

future rebates. :

e Cash rebates

The Company provides cash rebates to certain customers if customers make the payment within the stipulated
time given in the contract. The provision for cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.
The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises

a refund liability for the expected future rebates.
Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the eamed consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage

of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities .
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs

under the contract.
@ | New Delhi | 5 )




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.6

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in
other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
Jjoint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. k

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foresecable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

¥
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met,

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the profit

or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a scparate asset, as appropriate, only when
future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be

.

measured reliably.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised,

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight-line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful
economic lives of the asset,
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Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful life as per Schedule II
management
Office Equipment 3-5 years ' 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle ) 10 years 8 years
Computer 6/3 years 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less.
Assets costing ¥ 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made

on a prospective basis.
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Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the

asset is derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

over the period of copyright

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally
generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite (5-10 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Goodwill on business | In-definite No amortization Acquired
combination
Copyrights Finite (10 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired

Content development (including
In-house contents)*

Finite (10 seasons)

Amortized on straight line basis
over the period of content

Internally generated

*QR codes are amortized over 6 years as per terms of license.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible asset when the company can demonstrate all the following:

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. Its intention

to complete the asset.

e Its ability to use or sell the asset.
o How the asset will generate future economic benefits.

e The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
s The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are ‘expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of profit and loss during extended period
when active development activity of the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. It
also includes exchanges differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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2.10 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and nght-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

1. Right to use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Leasehold premises 3 to 9 years

2. Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments and amounts expected to be paid under

.

residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

3. Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office premises (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Ind AS 116 adoption

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all ]::ase contracts
existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method (alternative II). Consequently, the Company
recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate
with equal amount of right to use asset at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended

March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

» Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

+ Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs, Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis.

e Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairmént on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount, A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed, its recoverable amount,
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nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequént]y measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind
AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both

holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company

commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: .
e Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
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o Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains
and losses (debt instruments)

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘Financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

» The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit
or loss. The losses arising from impairment aré recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)
A “financial asset” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

o The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets, and
e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balancg sheet at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

o The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of

the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required

to repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

o Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

o Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI

e Lease receivables under Ind-AS 116.

e Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 115.

e Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

¢ Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

. Trade receivables, and
o All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
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a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. :

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

o All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument.

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the Company has
estimated provisi'on of 8.06% is required to be made on outstanding receivables at the reporting date:

Age bracket 0 — 180 days 180 — 365|365 — 730 | 730 — 1095 | More than 1095 days
days days days
Credit Loss Rate 0.06% 4.30% 26.81% 79.81% 100%

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: .

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a) For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.c.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the

gross carrying amount.
b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e.

as a liability.
¢) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI:-Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment

amount’ in the OCL

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to

borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109

and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When

an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in the statement of profit or loss
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Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities, For
financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. ;

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the unconsolidated statement

of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements; and
e Net interest expense or income,
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2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

2.20

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

Provisions
General .

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand gnd short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate
laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is

recognised directly in equity.

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

==
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assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures (including contingent liabilities). The management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

A. Judgement

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

For the lease contracts that include extension and termination options, the Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.
After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasechold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing
of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of books include cash rebates and volume rebates and a right to return the goods that
give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the
expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In
addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax

planning strategies.
Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratui 'ob[igalion. are determined using
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actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the
defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 28.
Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets .

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit

insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. For details of allowance for doubtful debts please refer Note

SA.
Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested indiv idually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (‘CGU’).

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments. '

Estimating variable consideration for right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates

Certain contracts for the sale of books include a right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates that give rise to
variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected
value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of consideration

to which it will be entitled.

i
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The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of goods with a
right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest

rates) when available.

Exceptional item

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the income statement that are of such size, nature or
incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance for the period. Materiality
threshold can be used to select items to be disclosed as exceptional on case-to-case basis. This threshold would be
applied separately for standalone as well as consolidated financial statements. However, in case an item qualifies for
disclosure in standalone financial statements but not in consolidated financial statements or vice versa, this would
need to be evaluated on case-to-case basis the above analysis, mainly following items would be evaluated for

disclosure as exceptional items:

a) Reassessment/ Change in life of asset (in case of re-evaluation of business/product, impact of all assets specific

to that business/product to be considered for applying the threshold).
b) Provision for other than temporary diminution in the value of non-current investment. .
¢) Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount, as

well as reversals of such write downs.
d) In case of other significant item of income or expense, not covered above, the same would be evaluated on a

case-to-case basis for disclosure under exceptional items.

\{
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3. Property, plant and equipment- Owned Assets

® in millions)
Particulars F“;:';;‘I; ® Vehicles*  Office equipment ":":::::::n ; Computer Total
Gross block
As at 1st April 2021 23.89 16.61 11.09 12.53 6.44 70.56
Additions 0.07 - 0.03 - 2.68 2,78
Disposals - - - - (1.18) (1.18)
As at 31st March 2022 23.96 16.61 11.12 12,53 7.94 72.16
Additions 0.15 5.03 0.47 0.65 4.72 11.02
Disposals (0.72) (0.73) (0.56) L (2.01) (4.02)
As at 31st March 2023 23.39 20.91 11.03 13.18 10.65 79.16
Accumulated depreciation
As at Ist April 2021 10.54 533 8.70 8.71 4.18 37.46
Charge for the year 211 1.48 0.78 : 1.16 0.98 6.51
Deductions 5 Z ; 2 (1.12) (112)
As at 315t March 2022 12.65 6.81 9.48 9.87 4.04 42.85
Charge for the year 2.12 1.68 0.59 1.30 1.31 7.00
Deductions (0.61) (0.56) (0.53) - (1.88) (3.58)
As at 315t March 2023 14.16 7.93 9.54 11.17 147 46.27
Net block
As at 31st March 2022 11.31 9.80 1.64 2.66 3.90 29.31
As at 31st March 2023 9.23 12.98 1.49 2.01 7.18 32.89

*Vehicles under loan contracts at 31 March 2023 was INR 2,70 million (31 March 2022: INR 3.43 million). Additions during the year include 2 NIL million (31 March 2022: T NIL). Loaned assets are

plediged as security for the related loan.

v
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4A. Intangible assets and goodwill
(T in millions)
: Computer Content

Particular Goodwill Software's Copy Rights development Total

Gross block

As at 1st April 2021 56.73 11.56 124.09 109.63 302.01
Additions - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
As at 31st March 2022 56.73 11.56 124.09 109.63 302.01
Additions - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
As at 31st March 2023 56.73 11.56 124.09 109.63 302.01
Accumulated depreciation '

As at st April 2021 - 11.14 80.68 5131 143.13
Amortization for the year - 041 16.56 7.93 24,90
Deductions - - - - -
As at 31st March 2022 - 11.55 97.24 59.24 168.03
Amortization for the year - 0.01 16.56 7.30 23.87
Deductions - - - - -
As at 31st March 2023 - 11.56 113.80 66.54 191.90
Net block
As at 315t March 2022 56.73 0.01 26.85 50.3%9 133.98

56.73 0.00 10.29 43.09 110.11

As at 31st March 2023

Impairment testing of goodwill

The Company performs test for goodwill impairment at least annually or if indicator of impairment arise, such as the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factor or on
occurrence of an event or change in circumstances that would more likely than not reduce the fair value below its carrying amount, When determining the fair value, we utilize various assumptions,

luding operating results, b plans and projections of future cash flows. Any ad h in key ptions about our busi and their prosy or an adh hange in market
conditions may cause a change in the estimation of fair value and could result in an impairment charge.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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4B. Right to use asset (refer note 29)
i (% in millions)

Particulars Right to use Total
. _asset

Cost
As at 1st April 2021 121.76 121.76
Purchases 34.12 3412 .
Disposals 4 -
Adjustment on account of remeasurement of lease liability (0.85) (0.85)
As at 31st March 2022 155.03 155.03
Purchases '19.58 19.58
Disposals - -
Adjustment on account of remeasurement of lease liability - -
As at 31st March 2023 174.61 174.61
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1st April 2021 47.06 47.06
Amortization for the year 27.69 27.69
Disposals - -
As at 31st March 2022 74.75 74.75
Amortization for the year 25.85 25.85
Disposals - -
As at 31st March 2023 100.60 100.60
Net block
As at 31st March 2023 74.01 74.01

80.28 80.28

A_s at 31st March 2022

4C. Intangible asset under development as at March 31st, 2023 is NIL (March 31st, 2022: Nil).

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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5. Financial assets

5A. Trade receivables

(T in millions)
Particulars Asat As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Total Trade receivables
Trade recelvables
Considered good- Secured - -
Considered good- Unsecured 586.91 578.40
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 51.47 66,65
Receivables- credit impaired = i

638.38 645.05
Less : Allowances for expected credit loss
Considered good- Secured B =
Considered pood- Unsecured - - -
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk (51.47) (66.65)
Receivables- eredit impaired = =

(51.47) (66.65)
Net trade receivables
Considered good- Secured - -
Considered good- Unsecured 586,91 578.40
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - =
Receivables- credit impaired ¥ =
Total trade receivables 586.91 578.40
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 308) 0.11 0.05
Current 586.91 578.40
Non-Current - -
The in impai of trade receivables is as follow: ®in Illi_'I.IE?I:ll

As at As at

Particulars 3st March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 66.65 8287
Additions/(Reversal) (9.16) (7.06)
Write off (net of recovery) ' (6.01) (9.16)
Closing balance 51.47 66.65

No trade receivable are due from director or other officer of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Ageing for trade receivables - current fing as at March 31st, 2023 is as follows:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

- T in millions
Particulars Not due Less than — Gmonths-" T T More than ¢ Total )
6 months 1 year Y y 3 vears
Trade receivables - Billed
Undisputed trade ivables — idered good 561.68 0.45 13.13 13.43 0.03 0.00 588.72
Undlu['vulod trade receivables — which have significant increase in 0.65 N 0.02 0.80 263 676 10.95
credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - 0.36 0.36
Disputed trade reccivables — considered good . ; - - . . .
Disputed trade receivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk . - 0.65 326 3444 3835
Disp trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - . - ¥
562.33 0.45 13.15 14.97 5.92 41.55 638,38
Less: All for doubtful trade ivables - Billed {5!:43!
" 586.91
Ageing for trade bles - current ling as at March 31s1, 2022 is as follows:
) Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment (@ in millions)
Particulars Not due Less than 6 manths - R R More than Total
6 months 1 year ¥ ¥ 3 years
Trade recelvables - Billed
Undisputed trade ivables — idered good 525.54 15.54 29,33 11.94 0.66 - 583.01
UndlLsguled trade receivables — which have significant increase in 012 0.01 403 13.01 561 2.90 1568
credit risk "
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - 0.02 - 0.36 - 1.25 1.63
Disputed trade ivables — idered good 0.03 - 010 - 1.49 5.99 7.61
DISFuIFd trade receivables — which have significant increase in - 043 A 043 184 2107 28577
credil risk
Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - 0.82 0.53 1.35
515.69 16.00 3346 15.74 12.42 31.74 645,05
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - Billed (66.65)
S578.40

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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5B.

5C.

5D,

Leans
_ (¥ in millions)
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Security deposits - Non Current 3.57 6.30
Security deposits - Current 4.94 3.01
Advances recoverable in cash or kind - Current (refer note (a) below) 7.08 5.70
Total Loans and advances 15.59 15.01
Current 12.02 8.7
Non-Current 3.57 6.30
Note (a)
Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Considered good, unsecured 7.08 5.63
Considered good, secured - -
Recoverable which have significant increase in credit risk 1.56 222
Recoverable - credit impaired = =
8.64 7.85
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (1.56) (2.22)
7.08 5.63
Advances recoverable from related parties
Unsecured, considered good (refer note 30B) = 0.07
Unsecured, considered doubtful = -
- 0.07
7.08 5.70
Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Balances with banks

- On current accounts 0.58 3.90
Cash on hand 0.08 0.15
Total Cash and cash equivalents 0.66 4.05
Current 0.66 4.05
Non-Current - #
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particul As at As at

AECwa1S 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
Margin money deposit (refer note below) 0.10 0.10
Total other financial Assets 0.19 0.10
Current - a
Non-Current 0.10 0.10
Note : -

Margin money deposits are under lien with banks towards bank guarantees issued by banks to the sales tax authorities
Inventories
g As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Raw materials (at cost) 157.43 78.77
Finished goods (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 204.98 190.45
362.41 269.22

Total Inventories . / &
N B

b T SR
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7.

TA.

7B.

8.

Other assets

Prepaid expenses
(¥ in millions)
. As at As at
Particul :
artiewars 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
Prepaid expenses (Non current) 1.49 1.54
Prepaid expenses (Current) 5.94 4.93
Total Prepaid expenses 743 6.47
Other assets
(T in millions)
sl As at Asat
P
AUt 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Income tax recoverable 0.14 0.11
Gratuity Fund (surplus fund valuation) - 1.40
Accrued income on deposits 0.07 0.06
Capital Advance
Considered good, unsecured 6.71 -
Total Other assets 6.92 1.57
Current 12.79 6.44
Non-Current 1.56 1.60
Deferred taxes
(T in millions)
Particula Axat Azst
= 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss account in the current year but allowed
for tax purposes on payment basis in subsequent year 2.59 1.73
Provision for doubtful debt & advances 12.95 16.77
Lease liability 2243 23.47
Impact of business loss carry forwarded in next years 175.01 198.62
Total deferred tax assets 21;.98 240.59
Items leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities (29.08) (35.58)
Total deferred tax liabilities (29.08) (35.58)
205.01

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

\f
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9. Share Capital
(2 in millions)

As at As at
Paﬂlcuf-rs . 31st Maréh 2023 31st March 2022
Authorised
31,00,000 (31st March 2022; 100,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each® 31.00 1.00
2,00,00,000 (31st March 2022: 2,00,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each” 200.00 200.00
231.00 201.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
5,80,639 (31st March 2022: 27,236) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 5.81 0.27
1,36,39,989 (31st March 2022: 1,36,39,989) CCPS* of Rs. 10/- cach 136,40 136.40
142.21 136.67

* The Authorized share capital increased from Rs. 20,10,00,000/- to Rs. 23,10,00,000/- vide passing shareholders ordinary resolution at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
May 10th , 2022.

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares No. of shares

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up .

As at 1st April 2021 27,236

Increase/(Decrease) during the year =

As at 31st March 2022 27,236

Increase/(Decrease) during the year 5,53,403
5,80,639

As at 31st March 2023

b. Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. No dividend has been proposed

by the board of director during the year ended 31st March 2023 (31st March 2022: Nil). In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to

receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

¢. 0.01% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares No. of shares

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31st March 2021 1,36,39,989
Increase/( Decrease) during the year &
As at 31st March 2022 1,36,39,989
Increase/( Decrease) during the year a
As at 31st March 2023 1,36,39,989

[This space has been intentionally left blankf
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d. Terms/ rights attached to Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

The company has issued 1,36,39,989 0.01% Non-Cumulative, Non-Participating, Compulsory Convertible Prefrence Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 each issued at par, vide Board

Resolution Dated 26th March, 2021.

These CCPS having a preferential right vis-a-vis equity shares of the Company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of winding up or repayment of
capital. CCPS shall be compulsorily converted after expiry of the period of 5 years from the date of allotment into such number of equity shares of face value or Rs, 10/- each at
the Fair Market Value to be determined at the time of conversion, and CCPS shall have voting rights only in respect of certain matters as per the provisions of Section

47(2) of the Act.

e. Shares held by holding company and their subsidiaries

Equity Shares
As at As at
Issued, subscribed and full id
ishion ol 31st March 2023 31st Mareh 2022
S Chand And Company Limited. 5,75,739 22,336
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, Subsidiary of the holding company 4,900 4,900
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
: As at As at

Issued, subscribe

s, nlat I wod Ay e 315t March 2023 315t March 2022
S Chand And Company Limited. 55,70,007 55,70,007
Chhaya Prakashni Limited, Subsidiary of the holding company £0,69,982 80,69,982
f. Details of shareholder holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:
S Chand And Company Limited, the Holding Company. ’ No. of shares % of shares
As at 31st March 2022 22,336 82.01%
As at 31st March 2023 5,715,739 99.16%
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, subsidiary of the holding company No. of shares % of shares
As at 31st March 2022 4,900 17.99%
As at 31st March 2023 4,900 0.84%
g. Details of equity shares held by promoters in the Company:
8 Chand And Company Limited, the Holding Company. No. of shares % of shares
As at 31st March 2022 22,336 82.01%
Increase/(Decrease) during the year 5,53,403 17.15%
As at 31st March 2023 * 575,739 99.16%
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, subsidiary of the holding company No. of shares % of shares
As at 31st March 2022 ‘ 4,900 17.99%
Increase/(Decrease) during the year - -
As at 31st March 2023 4,900 0.84%
h. Details of shareholder holding more than 5% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares in the Company:
S Chand And Company Limited, the Holding Company. No. of shares % of shares
As at 31st March 2022 55,70,007 40.84%
As at 31st March 2023 55,70,007 40.84%
Chhaya Prakashani Limited, subsidiary of the holding company No. of shares % of shares
As at 31st March 2022 80,69,982 59.16%
As at 31st March 2023 80,69,982 59.16%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shar
represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.
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10. Other Equity (¥ in millions)

" As at As at

Particulars _ 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Retained earning
Balance as the beginning of year (657.40) (897.98)
Add/Less: Profit/(Loss) for the year ' 96,80 238.79
Add/Less: Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year (5.24) 1.79
Balance as the end of year (565.84) (657.40)
General reserve
Balance as the beginning of year 390.00 390.00
Increase/(Decrease) during the year - =
Balance as the end of year 390.00 390.00
Securities premium
Balance as the beginning of year 669.83 669.83
Increase/(Decrease) during the year 74.47 -
Balance as the end of year 744.30 669.83
Other equity
Balance as the beginning of year 3.01 1.56
Increase/(Decrease) during the year 0.32 1.45
Balance as the end of year 13 3.01

Nature and purpose of reserves

Security premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The premium can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

General reserve

General reserve was created upon 13.25% optionally convertible redeemable debentures were converted into equity shares, the debenture redemption reserve was transferred to
General Reserve.

Other equity »
Deemed capital contribution represents Employee stock option (ESOP) cost allocated by the parent Company for stock options issued to employees of the Company.

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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11. Borrowings

11A. Non-current borrowings
(% in millions)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Term loans

WCTL under ECLGS from Kotak Bank (secured) (refer | below) 3.65 10.54
WCTL under ECLGS from RBL Bank (secured) (refer 2 below) 11.73 2933
Vehicle loans

Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) (Refer note 3 below) - 2,73
Loan from Group Company
Indian rupee loan from holding co.(refer note 5 below) - 125.00
Indian rupee loan from enterprise under same control (refer note 6 & 7 below) - 53.70
Total Non-current borrowings 15.38 221.30
Secured 1538 42.60
Unsecured - 178.70

Notes:

1. Company has taken WCTL of 2 19.90 million under ECLGS from Kotak Bank in financial year 2020-21 which carries fixed ROI as on date of offer is 8% p.a. (derived from
K_EBLR + 1%) repayable in 36 monthly instalments starting from Oct-2021. Moratorium of 12 months exercised from date of first disbursement. The loan is secured by way of (i)
First Pari-passu hypothecation charge on all existing and future current assets of the Borrower (ii) First Pari-passu hypothecation charge on current assets shared with State Bank
of India and RBL Bank (iii) First Pari-passu hypothecation charge on all existing and future moveable fixed assets of the Borrower, and (iv) First Pari-passu hypothecation charge
on moveable fixed asscts shared with State Bank of India and RBL Bank.

2. Company has taken WCTL of 2 52.80 million under ECLGS form RBL Bank in ﬁnmml year 2020-2[ which camies floating ROI (i.e. RRLR (i.e. 9.10% p.a. + 0.15% spread) at

the time of disbursement Interest rate was 9.25% p.a. Repayable in 36 hly i tarting from Dec-2021 (Moratorium of 12 months exercised from date of first
disbursement),
The loan is secured by way of (i) 100% Guaranteed by National Credit G Trustee Company Ltd (NCGTC) (ii) Second Charge by way of hypothecation on entire

assets inclusive of stock and book debs, both present and future, and (iii) Second Charge by way of hypothecation on entire movable fixed assets both present and future (except
those charged excl. to other banks/financial intuitions.)

3 Vehicle loan from M/s. Daimler Financial Services has been taken in the year 2019-20, secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicle in favour of the Lendor. It carries
interest rate of 10.75% p.a. The loan is repayable in 48 equal monthly instalments beginning from Oct2019 and at the time of payment of 48th EMI entire remaining balance of Rs.

2.42 million will be paid to the lender.

4 The Charges related to the above loans have been registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC), The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be
registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.

5  The Company had taken a loan of 30 million from the Holding Company during the year ended 31st March 2018, This loan was convertible at the option of the holding company
after | year and if not converted on or afler 3 years, the same was repayable by the company on completion of 3 years and 2 5 millions was repaid in same year. The company has
additionally taken loan of T 125 million during year ended 31st March 2020. In year 2020-21 company has further availed loan of T 25 million and has converted loan of X 50
million (including accrued i I ) into 55,70,007 0.01% non lati pulsorily cc ible preference shares (refer note 9) Iting into tanding bal of 2
125 million as on 31st March 2021. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the holding has ct 1i rate equal to State Bank of India's 2 Year MCLR plus 250
Bps p.a. During the year ended 31st March 2022 neither the company has accepted nor repald any pnnmpal out of this borrowing. (effective rate of interest 9.70% p.a. during year
2021-22). During the year 2022-23 company has converted loan of ¥ 79.99 million into 553,403 equity share @ 10 face value with security premium @ 144.56 issucd by
company on 6th June'22 and 45 million paid in the month of March 2023, There is no outstanding as on March 31st, 2023 against Holding company.

6 The Company has taken a loan of 2 77.50 millions from Chhaya Prakashani Limited, fellow subsidiary, during the year ended 31st March 2020 and carries interest rate equal to
State Bank of India's 2 Year MCLR plus 250 Bps p.a. The facility will be convertible at the option of the company after | year and if not converted on or after 3 years, the loan
shall be repaid by the company on completion of 3 years. During year ending 3 Ist March 2021, the company has repaid loan of T 5 million, balance % 72.50 millions (including
accrued interest thereon) converted into 80,69,982 0.01% non cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (refer note 9). Further, additional loan of 2 10 million has
been taken during the year which carries interest rate equal to State Bank of India's 2 Year MCLR plus 250 Bps p.a. During the year ended 3 1st March 2022 neither the company
has accepted nor repaid any principal out of this borrowing. (effective rate of interest 9.70% p.a. during year 2021-22). During the year ended 31st March 2023, the company has

repaid fully principal amount.

7 The Company has taken a loan of Z 35 million from Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited, fellow subsidiary, during the year ended 31st March 2019. The facility will be
convertible at the option of the company after 1 year and if not converted on or after 3 years, the loan shall be repaid by the company on completion of 3 years, The company has
additionally taken loan of ¥ 5 million during year ended 31st March 2020. Balance outstanding as on 31st March 2020 was 2 40 million. During year ended 31st March 2021, the
company has repaid loan of 2 15 million and availed additional loan of 2 18,70 million resulting into outstanding balance of % 43.70 millions as on 31st March 2021. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, the lender pany has changed i rate equal to State Bank of India's 2 Year MCLR plus 250 Bps p.a. On 10th-Feb22, the company had
requested the lenders to extend the tenure of original agreement expiring on 11th Feb'22 for a further period of 3 years effective form 12thy/Feb’22. All conditions to this loan shall
remain unchanged except that * the loan will be convertible at the option of the borrower after 1 year and if not converted on or befopt 3 years, the loan shall be repaid by the
borrower on completion of 3 years". (effective rate of interest 9.70% p.a. during year 2021-22). During the year ended 31st March 2023, the company has repaid fully principal

amount,
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11B. Current borrowings
(% in millions)

Particulars AL A3t

. _ . . 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
a Cash Credit

Indian rupee loan from bank (secured) (refer note 1, 2 & 3 below) 77.20 51.23
b  Vehicle Loan

Indian rupee loan from bank (secured) (refer sub note 3 of note 11A) 2.70 0.70
¢ Current maturity of long term borrowings

Term Loans

WCTL under ECLGS from Kotak Bank (secured) (refer sub note 1 of note 11A) 6.89 6.36

WCTL under ECLGS from RBL Bank (secured) (refer sub note 2 of note 11A) 17.60 17.60

Total Current maturity of Indian currency loan : 27.19 24,66

Total current borrowings 104.39 75.89

Secured ' ’ 104.39 75.89

Unsecured

d.  Below tables represents the summary of reconciliation of the quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with HDFC Bank ,SBI Bank and RBL

Bank:

i) quarter ended 30th June 2022 (% in millions)
' Reconciling it

Particulars As per statement filed - iAo Total As oo Backs ol Difference**

X* Y accounts

Inventory 261.29 - - 261.29 . 259.98 ' 1.31

Trade receivables 421.52 - - 421.52 420.50 1.02

Trade payables 146,97 102.12 - 249.09 249.09 -

Below tables represents the summary of reconciliation of the quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with SBI Bank and RBL Bank:

ii) quarter ended 30th September 2022
(% in millions)

Particulars As per statement filed Focouciim o Tatal As por becks o Difference”
X* Y accounts
Inventory ' 388.40 - S 388.40 367.63 20.77
Trade receivables 260.00 - - 260.00 256.94 3.06
148.78 115.20 - 263.98 263.98 -

Trade payables

Below tables represents the summary of reconciliation of the quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with SBI Bank and RBL Bank:
(T in millions)

iii) quarter ended 3 1st December 2022
Particulars As per statement filed oot Heww Total As per beaks of Difference”®

X* Y accounts
Inventory 468.54 - - 468.54 ; 474.28 -5.74
Trade receivables 24493 - - 24493 243.36 1.57
Trade payables 261.74 123.77 - 385.51 385.51 -

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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Below tables represents the summary of reconciliation of the quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with SBI Bank and RBL Bank:

MNotes:

iv) quarter ended 3 1st March 2023 (% in millions)
Particulars As per statement filed Reeus g ons Total Agperbooksaf Difference®

X* Y accounts
Inventory 347.15 - - 347.15 362.41 -15.27
Trade receivables 588.17 - - 588.17 586.91 1.26
Trade payables 269.47 132.62 - 402.09 402.09 B

* Note : Non-trade vendors have been excluded from trade payables reported to the lendors.
#* Statements had been submitted to bank prior to the limited review/ statutory audit. At the time of limited review/statutory audit, there were certain adjustments
made related to provision for sales return, discounts and doubtful debts, which resulted into difference between statements submitted to banks and books of accounts

of the company.
A Differences between statements furnished to banks for quarters ended 30-06-2022, 30-09-2022, 31-12-2022 & 31-03-2023 and books of accounts are not material.

Cash Credit from HDFC bank under multiple banks arrangement with Kotak Bank is carrying an interest rate of 9.6% p.a. (31st March 2022: 9.6% p.a.) repayable on
demand. The loan is secured by way of (i) first pari passu charge on entire existing and future current asset (ii) first pari passu charge on entire existing and future
movable fixed assets of the company (iii) Corporate Guarantee by § Chand And Company Limited. (iv) Personal Gurantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh
Kumar Jhunjhnuwala.Our cash credit facility from Kotak bank has been closed during the financial year ended on 31st March 2021. Our cash credit facility from
HDFC bank has been closed during the financial vear ended on 31st March 2023

Cash Credit from RBL bank carrying an interest rate of 10.35% p.a (31st March 2022: 9.05% p.a.) repayable on demand. The loan is secured by way of (i) first pari-
passu charge by way of hypothecation on entire current assets inclusive of stocks and book debts, both present and future. (if) first pari-passu charge by way of
hypothecation on entire movable fixed assets both present and future except those charged excl. to other banks/ financial institutions. (iii) Corporate Guarantee by S
Chand And Company Limited. (iv) Personal Gurantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

Cash Credit from SBI bank is availed during the year carrying an interest rate of 11.15% p.a (2% above EBLR ) repayable on demand. The loan is secured by way of
(i) first pari passu charge on entire existing and future current asset (ii) first pari passu charge on entire existing and future movable fixed assets of the company
except assets which are specifically charged to the other lenders (iii) Corporate Guarantee by § Chand And Company Limited. (iv) Personal Gurantee of Mr.

Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

* (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries)

or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any lender who has powers to declare a company as a wilful defaulter at any time during the financial
year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial statements are approved.

The Charges related to the above loans have been registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC). The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is
yet to be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.
[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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12. Trade payables

(¥ in millions)

Particulars Art et
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Current
Trade payables of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 31) 107.84 30.27
Trade payables of related entities (refer note RPT note) 147.95 141.57
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 146.30 171.21
Total trade payables 402.09 343.05
Below table represents the trade payables ageing:
Particulars Lesi:::n i 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
As at 31st March 2023: — - '
a) Undisputed trade payables :
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 107.84 - - - 107.84
Others 246.54 13.37 34.10 0.24 294.25
354.38 1337 . 34.10 0.24 402.09
b) Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Others - - - - -
Total Trade Payables I 354.38 13.37 34.10 0.24 402.09
As at 31st March 2022:
a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 30.27 - - . 30.27
Others 257.41 49.39 5.98 5 312.78
287.68 49.39 5.98 - 343.05
b) Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises = - o - -
Others o * = X i =
Total Trade Payables 287.68 49.39 5.98 - 343.05

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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13A.

13B.

14,

15.

Other financial liabilities
(¥ in millions)
i As at As at
Particul .
AR 31st March2023  31st March 2022
Employee related payables 31.40 23.98 -
Total other financial liabilities 31.40 23.98
Current 31.40 23.98
Non current B =
Other financial liabilities : Leases
(% in millions)
Particulars Apat Aset
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Lease Liablilty- Current (refer note-29) 25.52 23.74
Lease Liablilty- Non Current (refer note-29) 63.58 69.50
89.10 93.24

Total other financial liabilities

Provisions
(% in millions)
Particulars st Anat
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Gratuity Fund (Non Current) (refer note 28(b.)) 449 -
Provision for leave encashment (Current) (refer note-28(c) and 28(d)) 0.36 043
Provision for leave encashment (Non-Current) (refer note-28(c) and 28(d)) 3.91 4.25
Total Provisions 8.76_ 4.68
Current 0.36 0.43
Non current 8.40 4.25
Other liabilities
(T in millions)
Particul As at As at
USRI 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Statutory dues 7.75 9.77
Advance from customer 8.06 9.37
Total Other liabilities 15.81 19.14
15.81 19.14

Current
Non current
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16.

Revenue from contract with customers

(% in millions)

Particulars A%B0 i
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Sale of products
Finished goods 1,572.29 1,175.86
Less: Discount (447.83) (286.15)
1,124.46 889.71
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 7.16 3.87
Total revenue from operations 1,131.62 893.58
India 1,130.91 893.09
Qutside India 0.71 0.49:
1,131.62 893.58
Timing of revenue recognition
Particulars s AFNE
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Goods transferred at a point in time 1,131.62 893.58
1,131.62 893.58

The Company collects Goods and Service Tax (GST); where ever applicable, on behalf of the Government and hence, GST is not
included in revenue from contract with customers.

Contract balances

Particul: As at As at
AR 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Trade receivables 586.91 578.40
Contract liabilities (advance from customer) 8.06 9.37
Right to return asset and refund liability

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2023

31st March 2022

Refund liabilities
Arising from discounts
Arising from rights of return

229.45 169.22
: 265.01 270.58
Vi 494.46 439.80
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1T

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Particulars At iy
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 1,907.55 1,600.17
Adjustments
Sales return 328.10 420.44
Discount 447.83 286.15
1,131.62 893.58

Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Manufactured goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods to the transporter designated by the customer or to the customer
whichever is earlier.

The customer has a right to return material to an éxtent as may be agreed upon with each customer or within the limits as may be
determined by the company. The customer is also eligible for discounts based on achievement of revenue targets as may be agreed.

Other income

Particulars AREE i

31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Finance income
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 0.02 0.05
- Others . 0.01 0.34
Unwinding of interest on security deposit - 0.83
Foreign exchange differences (net) 0.00 -
Miscellaneous income 1.01 2.59
Reversal of provision for advances 0.66 -
Reversal of bad debts provisions 9.16 7.06
Amount written back 3.28 3.01
Grand Total 14.14 13.88
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18.

19.

Cost of published goods/raw material consumed

{1_ in millio_ns)

Particulars Avat Af
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Inventories at the beginning of the year 78.77 41.22
Add : Books Purchase & Printing Cost. 228.80 156.81
Add : Purchases of paper 285.51 168.55
593.08 366.58
Less : Inventories at the end of the year (157.43) (78.77)
Total Cost of material consumed 435.65 287.81
Total Cost of published goods/raw material consumed 435.65 287.81
Details of raw material purchased
Paper 285.51 168.55
Books Purchased & Printing Cost. 228.80 156.81
514.31 325.36
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
Particulars axel fot
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 204.98 190.45
204.98 190.45
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 190.45 216.04
190.45 216.04
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (14.53) 25.59
Details of Inventories
. Particulars Asat Aret
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Finished goods
- Manufactured goods
Books 204.98 190.45
/ 204.98 190.45
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20. Employee benefit expenses

(% in millions)

Parti As at As at
articulars
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 220.29 197.28
Contribution to provident and other funds 14.26 13.58
Gratuity expense (refer note 28b) 3.39 3.75
Employee stock option expense (refer note 42) RS2 1.45
Staff welfare expenses 2.30 2.67
Total employee benefit expenses 240.56 218.73
21. Finance cost
Particulars As 4t Apat
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Interest
- On borrowings 2434 38.42
- On lease liability 9.16 10.28
- On other liabilities 0.29 0.05
Bank charges 0.12 0.09
Loan processing fee 1.02 0.08
Total finance cost .34.93 48.89
22. Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Particulars As at As at
SRR 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 3) 7.00 6.51
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4a) 23.87 2490
Depreciation of right to use asset (refer note 4b) 25.85 27.69
Total depreciation and amortisation expenses 56.72 59.10
23. Publication expenses
Particul As at As at
el 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Binding and processing charges 17.83 16.40
Royalty expenses 53.04 42.70
Freight and cartage expenses pa 7 044
70.87 59.54

Total publication expenses
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24, Other expenses

(% in millions)
As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Rent (refer note 29) 5.1 4.38
Repair and maintenance -
-Buildings 0.78 0.73
-Other . 6.52 5.38
Insurance 4.22 2.43
Rates and taxes 0.13 0.25
Communication cost 2.47 2.54
Legal and professional fee 10.06 9,17
Shared services cost (refer note 43) ’ 24.06 16.15
Payment to auditor (refer note below) 1.78 1.48
Printing and stationery 1.91 1.85
Postage 7.00 8.70
Water and clectricity charges 4.55 4.06
Office expenses 26.21 29.13
Advertisement, publicity and exhibition 27.29 16.82
Travelling and conveyance 43.12 32.64
Freight and distribution . 2297 2475
Packing expenses .20 2.24
Vehicle running and maintenance 2.60 243
Security expenses 1.87 1.33
Membership and subscription 0.39 0.11
Donation 1.74 4.00
Recruitment charges 0.30 0.12
Provision for advances - 0.71
Misc. Balance Written Off 1.68 0.20
Forex Loss 0.00 1.45
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 0.03 0.02
Miscellaneous expenses . 1.90 1.55
Total other expenses 201.89 174.62
Payment to auditor
Particulars At At
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
As auditor
Audit fee 0.71 0.50
Limited review fees 0.89 0.60
In other capacity
Assistance in tax compliance matter 0.15 0.38
Out of pocket expenses 0.04 -
1.79 1.48
Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 2
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of equity is shown below:
As at As at
Rerticuir 31stMarch2023  31st March 2022
Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (7.00) 2.39
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 1.76 (0.60)
(5.24) 1.79
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26.

© 27a.

27b.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holder by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during

the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holder by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basi¢ and diluted EPS computations

( in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity holder of the company for computing basic EPS 96.80 238.79
96.80 238.79
Profit attributable to equity holder of the company for computing diluted EPS
Net profit as above * 96.80 238.79
Add: Interest on debentures (net of tax) - -
96.80 238.79
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing -
- Basic EPS 4,80,572 27,236
- Diluted EPS* 1,41,20,561 1,36,67,225
Basic EPS 201 8,768
Diluted EPS 7 17

*Company has issued 1,36,39,989 CCPS on March 26, 2021 which have dilutive potential in year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023

Income taxes

(% in millions)

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Income tax charged to statement of profit and loss
Current income tax charge
Adjustment of taxes for earlier years

Deferred tax charge +22.87 (205.61)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss 22.87 (205.61)
OCI section

For the year ended For the year ended

il 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit plan 1.76 (0.60)
Income tax charged to OCI 1.76 (0.60)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:
' (% in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
Partexan 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Accounting profit before tax 119.67 33.18
Al India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% 30.12 8.35
Deductible expenses for tax purpose (18.18) (16.94)
Incomes not chargable to tax , 007 (0.58)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes ; 17.55 40.72
Non recognition of deferred tax assets on currrent year losses | (29.56) (31.55)
De-recognition of opening deferred tax asstes b (22.87) 205.61
(22.87) 205.61

Total income tax expense g
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2023

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

28. Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

An amount of 2 12.79 million [31 March 2022 : ¥ 12.14 million] for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of the Company’s contributions towards
Provident Fund, an amount of % 0.44 million [31 March 2022 : 2 0.47 million] for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of Company’s contributions
towards Employee State Insurance and an amount of ¥ 1.02 million [31 March 2022 : Z 0.93 million] for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of the
Company's contributions towards National Pension Scheme, which are deposited with the government authorities and have been included under employee benefit
expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five year of service gets a gratuity on
departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to a maximum of Rs. 2.00 millions. The
scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for

Gratuity Plan.
Statement of Profit & Loss account

Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee Cost:

( in millions)

Pariicilars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost = 3.51 ~ 3.74
Interest cost on defined obligation 1.49 1.35
Interest income on plan asset (1.61) (1.35)
3.39 3.74
(@ in millions) _

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Saninihe 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation - 5.82 il (1.69)
Actuarial gains / (losses) on assets 1.18 (0.70)

7.00 (2.39)
Balance sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: (% in_millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars . 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening defined benefit obligation 20.68 ' 19.70
Current service cost 3.51 3.74
Interest cost 1.49 1.35
Benefits paid (3.10) (2.42)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation 5.82 (1.69)
Closing defined benefit obligation 28.40 20.68
Current Portion 2 =
Non - Current Portion 28.40 20.68

(X in millions)

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Taieuiary 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening fair value of plan assets 22.08 19.45
Expected return 1.61 1.35
Contributions by employer 4.00 3.00
Benefits paid (3.10) (242)
Actuarial gain/(loss) (1.18) 0.70
Closing fair value of plan assets 23.41 22,08

The Company contributed Rs. 4 millions this year (31 March 2022: Rs. 3 millions)
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2023

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

The major categories of pl;m assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows: .
Particulars ‘ ' For the year ended For the year ended
; 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investments with insurer ) ' 100% i - 100%
The economic and demographic assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:
Particulars ' ' " For the year ended For the year ended
i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate . 7.49% ) 7.31%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.70% 7.70%
Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 6.00%
Retirement Age (In year) 60 year 60 year
Employee turnover :-
- Age upto 30 year ; ’ 3.00% 3.00%
- Age 3| - 44 year : 2.00% 2.00%
- Age above 45 year : 1.00% 1.00%
Mortality Rate 2
TALM QO12-14) 1\t (2012-14) Ultimate
Ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factor, such as supply
and demand in the employment market,
The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to

be settled.
The impact of sensitivity analysis due to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions on the defined benefit obligations is given in below table:
Particulars . Change in ass tio Aval AvM
it i 31 March 2023 31 March2022

Discount rate +1% (25.12) (18.34)

- 1% 32.32 2347
Expected rate of salary increase : +1% 32.06 23.34

- 1% (25.22) (18.42)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes
in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. :

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future year:

Particulars - Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Year ] 0.46 0.46
Year 2 0.87 0.67
Year 3 4.06 0.77
Year 4 0.78 3.64
Year 5 1.18 0.66
Year 6 to 10 ., 6.80 4.86
Above 10 Years 75.00 51.03

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 17.08 year (31 March 2022: 17.14 year).
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2023

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

C.

Leave Encashment for Sick Leaves

In respect of leave encashment benefit, accrual is made on the basis of a year-end actuarial valuation in pursuance of the Company’s leave rules.

The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the actuarial valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.
The following table sets out for the status of leave encashment plan:

Salary Increase Rate

Demographic Assumptions

IALM (2012-14)

. (T in millions)

Pirticulars For the year ended For the year ended
. : 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 1.17 1.37

Current Liability 0.09 0.12

Non Current Liability 1.08 1.25
Discount Rate at Year - end 7.49% 7.31%
Financial Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.49% 7.31%

8.00% 6.00%

TIALM (2012-14)

Mortality Rate
Ultimate Ultimate
Withdrawal Rate Upto 30 years - 3% Upto 30 years - 3%
31 - 44 years - 2% 31 - 44 years - 2%
45 years and above -1%| 45 vears and above -1%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Leave Availment (%) 1.00% 1.00%
Expected Future Cashflows
Year | 0.09 0.12
Year 2 0.10 0.12
Year 3 0.10 0.13
Year 4 0.09 0.13
Year 5 0.10 0.11
Year6to 10 0.53 0.60
Above 10 Years 1.54 1.59
. 255 _2.80 |
_@gg_sjtivity Analysis _
. 2 As at As at
Particulars Change in assumptions 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 .
Discount Rate + 1% (1.08) (1.27)
- 1% 1.28 1.49
Expected rate of salary increase +1% 1.28 1.49
- 1% (1.08) (1.27)

\¢
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2023

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

d.

Leave Encashment for Paid Leaves

In respect of leave encashment benefit, accrual is made on the basis of a year-end actuarial valuation in pursuance of the Company's leave rules.
The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the actuarial valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.
The following table sets out for the status of leave encashment plan:

: @ in millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation o 3.10 330
Current Liability 0.27 031
Non Current Liability 2.83 2.99
Discount Rate at Year - end 7.49% 1.31%
Financial Assumptions
Discount Rate 7.49% 7.31%
8.00% 6.00%

Salary Increase Rate

Demographic Assumptions

TALM (2012-14)

Mortality Rate TALM (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate
Withdrawal Rate Upto 30 years - 3% Upto 30 years - 3%
31 - 44 years - 2% 31 - 44 years - 2%
45 vears and above -1%| 45 years and above -1%
Retirement age 60 years 60 years
Expected Future Cashflows
Year | 0.27 0.31
Year 2 " 0.28 0.31
Year 3 0.28 0.32
Year 4 0.26 032
Year 5 0.26 0.29
Year 6 to 10 1.40 1.46 |-
Above 10 Years 3.79 3.60
6.54 6.61
Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars Change in assumptions 1 M:ri:tmzs 31 M::c;lmn
Discount Rate + 1% (2.86) (3.06)
- 1% 3.36 3.57
Expected rate of salary increase +1% 3.36 3.57
- 1% (2.86) (3.06)

¢
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2023
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

29.

Leases

Company as lessee
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" from Ist April 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting policies in the financial statements.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
1. Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.
2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application.

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application,
4. The company has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application, Instead, for contracts entered into before
the transition date the company relied on its assessment made applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C to Ind AS 17, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a

Lease.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period: (X in millions)
: 3 § ) ' ' ' For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As at 01 April . 80.28 - 74,70
Additions 19.58 34.12
Deletion - (0.85)

Adjustment of opening RER provisions
Remeasurement impact

Depreciation expense

As at 31 March 74.01

(25.85) (27.69)
80.28

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under intérest—bearing loans and borrowings) and the

movements during the period: (X in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

As at 01 April 93.24 ' 83.87
Additions- 19.58 34.14
Deletion - (0.91)
Accretion of interest 9.16 10.28
Remeasurement impact - -

Payments (excluding saving due to COVID-19 of 2 0.58 million (31 March 2022: ¥ 1.42 million)) (32.89) (34.14)
As at 31 March 89.09 93.24
Current 25.52 23.74
Non-current 63.57 69.50

* The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%, with maturity between 2021-2026
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2023
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

( in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 25.85 27.69
Interest expense on lease liabilities 9.16 10.28
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 5.11 4.38
Remeasurement impact = -
(Gain)/Loss on premature termination of Lease Agreement - (0.06)
(Gain)/Loss on lease rental waiver due to COVID-19* (0.58) (1.42)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 39.54 40.87

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of ¥ 32.89 million in 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: 2 34.14). The Company also had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets of T 19.58 million and lease liabilities of % 19.58 million, corresponding deletion was of 2 Nil million and X Nil million respectively in 31.
March 2023 (non-cash additions to right-of-use assets of Z 34.12 million and lease liabilities of  34.12 million, corresponding deletion was of  0.85 million and

0.91 million respectively in 31 March 2022),

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these

extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The company does not face a significant li
liabilitics as and when they fall due.

quidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was % 5.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2023 (FY 2021-22 was % 4.38 million).
The aggregate depreciation on ROU assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

*Due to amendment in Ind-AS 116, Leases (COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions), company has recorded gain of ¥ 0.58 million (31 March 2022: % 1.42

million) in other income.
30. Related party disclosure

4. Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties where control exists
Holding Company

S Chand and Company Limited

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Enterprises under same control

Enterprise over which KMP or their relatives

exercise significant influence

Key management personnel

S Chand and Company Limited

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited -
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited
DS Digital Private Limited

BPI (India) Private Limited

S. Chand Edutech Private Limited

Chhaya Prakashani Limited

S. Chand Properties Private Limited

Edutor Technologies India Private Limited
Convergia Digital Education Private Limited

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited

Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala, Director

Himanshu Gupta, Director

Ankita Gupta, Director

Rajagopalan Chandrashekar, Independent Director

Shammi Manik, CEO (w.c.f. 11 February 2020)

Narander Kumar, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f, 11 February 2020)
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New Saraswatl House (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the ended 31 March, 2023

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

h) Related party transactions

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parti

es during the period/year:

] (Tin millions)
) Enterprise over which
Enterprise Key
Particular Year ended Holatng under same Key Management managerial Total
company Personnel exercise
control i personnel
significant influence

Sale of books )

5 Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 0.10 - - - 0.10
31-Mar-22 - - % = -

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31-Mar-23 = 0.35 - - 0.35
31-Mar-22 - 0.55 - - 0.55

Job Work- Binding & Printing

S Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 - 5 5 5 "
31-Mar-22 3.64 i < z 3.64

Vikas publishing House Private Limited 31-Mur-23 - 105.11 - - 105.11
31-Mar-22 - 66.80 - A 66.80

Miscellaneous Income

5. Chand Edutech Pw. Ltd, 31-Mar-23 - = = - =
31-Mar-22 - . 0.03 - 0.03

Tour & Travel Expenses

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - - 0.05 - 0.05
31-Mar-22 - - 0.03 - 0.03

License Fee (QR Code)

Sufari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - 2.86 - - 2.86
31-Mar-22 - 2.42 - - 2.42

Legal and professional

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - 4.25 - - 4.25
31-Mar-22 - 6.37 - - 6.37

Edutor Technologies India Pvt Ltd 31-Mar-23 - 177 - - 1.77
31-Mar-22 - - - - 5

§ Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 24.06 - - - 24.06
31-Mar-22 16.15 - - - 16.15

Interest on Term Loan *

S Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 6.11 - - - 6.11
31-Mar-22 12,13 - - - 12.13

Niria Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - 0.70 - - 0.70
31-Mar-22 = 4.24 - - 4.24

Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31-Mar-23 - 0.06 - - 0.06
31-Mar-22 - 0.97 - - 0.97

Rent expenses

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - - 11.09 - 1109
31-Mar-22 - - 10.44 + 10.44

Ankita Gupta 31-Mar-23 - - - 0.53 0.53
3 1-Mar-22 - - - 0.50 0.50

Other paid (rei )

S Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 1.62 - - - 1.62
31-Mar-22 2.36 - - - 236

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - 0.93 - - 0.93
31-Mar-22 - - - - -

BPI India Pt Ltd. 31-Mar-23 - 0.05 - - 0.05
31-Mar-22 - - - - -

8. Chand Edutech Pwi. Lid. 31-Mar-23 - 0.09 - - 0.09
31-Mar-22 - 0.07 - - 0.07

S. Chand Properties 31-Mar-23 - 0.08 - - 0.08
31-Mar-22 - 0.05 - - 0.05

Edutor Technologies India Pyt Ltd 31-Mar-23 - 0.07 - - 0.07
31-Mar-22 - - - - -

HOTEL TOURIST 31-Mar-23 - 0.14 - - 0.14
31-Mar-22 - 0.04 - - 0.04

SC HOTEL TOURIST DELUXE PVT. LTD 31-Mar-23 - 0.04 - - 0.04 |
31-Mar-22 - 0.07 - - 0.07

DS Digital Private Limited (*) 31-Mar-23 - 1) - - -
31-Mar-22 - 0.07 - - 0.07

Ankita Gupta 31-Mar-23 - - - 0.38 0.38
31-Mar-22 - - - 1.05 1.05

Loan repaid during the year

Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31-Mar-23 - 10.00 - - 10.00
31-Mar-22 - - - - -

S Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 45,00 - - - 45.00
31-Mar-22 - . # 5 ”

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - 43.70 - - 43.70
31-Mar-22 = : . % =

Loan conversion on equity share

§ Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 80.00 / 5 . 80.00

31-Mar-22 - - - - L
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Notes to financial statements for the ended 31 March, 2023
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b)

Related party tr

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have

been entered into with related parties during the period/year:

(X in millions)

Director remuneration®

Ankita Gupta 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
31-Mar-22 . . - 0.33 0.33

Director Sitting Fee

Rai lan Chandrashek} 31-Mar-23 - . - 0.15 0.15
31-Mar-22 - - - 0.10 0.10

Remunration of KMP (full year)

Shammi Manik 31-Mar-23 - - - 9.52 9.52
31-Mar-22 - - - 8.22 8.22

Narendra Kumar 31-Mar-23 - - - 139 339
31-Mar-22 - - - 3.04 3.04

*Including perquisites paid during the year for year

ended March'31 2023,

Outstanding balance as at the year end

Trade payable

5 Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 62.92 - - - 62.92
31-Mar-22 68.64 - - - 68.64 |-

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - 85.06 - - 85.06
31-Mar-22 - 72.92 - - 7292

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
31-Mar-22 - - 0.01 - 0.01

Trade receivable

BPI (India) Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
31-Mar-22 - 0.03 - - 0.03

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - 0.11 - - 0.11
31-Mar-22 - 0.02 - - 0.02

Loans & advances to related parties

BFI (India) Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
31-Mar-22 - 0.07 - - 0.07

Security deposit

SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - - 4.60 - 4.60
31-Mar-22 - - 4.20 - 4.20

Ankita Gupta 31-Mar-23 - - - 0.19 0.19
31-Mar-22 - - - 0.19 0.19

Short term loan

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
31-Mar-22 - 43.70 - - 43.70

Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31-Mar-23 - - - - -
31-Mar-22 - 10.00 = - 10.00

S Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 : - - - -
31-Mar-22 125.00 - - - 125.00 |.

Preference Shares

8 Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 55.70 - - - 55.70
31-Mar-22 55.70 - - . 55.70

Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31-Mar-23 - 80,70 - - 80.70
31-Mar-22 - 80.70 - - 80,70

Conversion of Equity Share

S Chand And Company Limited 31-Mar-23 80.00 - - - 80.00

31-Mar-22 - - - - -

¥
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31

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

37

Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

(in millions) _

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year

= Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
- Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year,

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deduclible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

107.84 30.27
0.00 -
30.27

107.84

The amount of foreign currency exposure that are not hedged by derivative instrument or otherwise as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as under:

Amount in foreign currency

(T in millions)

Particular Foreign currency

March 31,2023  March 31, 2022 March _3 I, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables USD - 22,553 - 1.71
Exchange Rate used per USD 8222 7590 .
Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)
(¥ in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
Sarimlin 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Advertising and salcs prorndtien 7.12 0.57
7.12 0.57
Earnings in foreign currency
. __@in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended
i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Exports of F.0.B.Value 0.71 049
0.71 0.49
Imported and indigenous raw materials consumed
Percentage (%) (X in millions)
Ry Mutsrink March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Imported 0% 0% - 8
Indigenous 100% 100% 285.51 168.55
Segment reporting

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is publishing of books and operates in a single business segment based on the nature of the services, the
risk and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the

Company’s single business segment.

Significant Customer

The Company does not have any significant customer for the year ended 31 March 2023. (Also there was no significant customer having sales aggregating to 10% of total

revenue for the year ended 31 March 2022)
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38 Financial Instruments:- Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee
contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations, The
Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management overseas the management of these risks and
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the
shareholder's that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Director reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk:-
a.) Interest rate risk,
b.) currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
c.) commodity risk.
Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, investments, deposits, advances and derivative financial instruments,

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of floating to fixed interest rates of the debt and
derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2023.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations;
provisions. The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

a. Interest rate risk. .
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with fixed
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after
the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate

borrowings, as follows:
(% in millions)
Increase/decrease in Effect on profit  Effect on equity

Particulars basis points before tax (OCI)
As at March 31, 2023 .
INR Borrowings +0.5% (0.60) -
-0.5% 0.60 -
As at March 31, 2022 ‘
INR Borrowings +0.5% (1.49) -
) -0.5% 1.49 -

b. Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense
is denominated in a foreign currency).

The company does not hedge its foreign currency exposure, however the sensitivity analysis is given as below for the currencies, in which Company

has foreign exposure:
(¥ in millions)
Changes in foreign Effect on profit  Effect on equity

Fartientars currency rates before tax (OCI)
For the year ended March 31, 2023 _ e (Ing /+5% ¢ -
USD fon' 7T S . -5% - -

For the year ended March 31, 2022
usb

\ ( 0.09

-5% . (0.09) -

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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B. Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a fi
exposed to any significant credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables),
transactions and other financial instruments.

ial instrument or customer contract,
including deposits with banks and financial institutions,

The Ageing analysis of trade receivables (net) for which credit has been impaired as of the reporting date is as follows:

leading to a financial loss. The Company is not
, foreign exchange

The company's approach to managing liquidity to ensure , as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liability when they are due,
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking da
deploys a robust cash management system. The Company manages liquidi
forecast and actual cash flows, profile of financial assets and liabilities. It maintain adequate sources of financing in

table below provides the details regarding contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

(% in millions)
Less than 6 months - More than

t & L A

Age. Bracke! Not due & niinslic 3 ey 1-2years 2-3 years 3 vests Total

As at 31 March 2022 ) - 1.63 0.49 7.81 12.72 44.00 66.65
As at 3 I March 2023 - 0.61 0.57 4.01 4.73 41.55 51.47

0 maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafls, and bank loans.
under both normal
mage to the Company's reputation. The Company closely monitor its liquidity position and
ty risk by maintaining adequate reserves, borrowing liabilities, by continuously monitoring
cluding loans from banks at an optimised cost. The

(T in millions)

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

On Demand
- Borrowings

Less than 1 year

- Borrowings 104.39 75.89
- Trade payables 354.38 287.68
- Other financial liabilities 31.40 23.98
490.16 387.55
More than 1 year
- Borrowings 15.38 221.30
- Trade payables 47.72 55.37
- Other financial liabilitics - -
63.10 276.67

39 Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity ca
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advanta.
management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns
sound capital position. The primary ‘objective of the company's capital

The Company monitor capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
70%. The Company measures underlying net debt as total liabilities,
companies less cash and cash equivalents. For the purpose of capital m.
attributable to the equity holder of the Company, as applicable.

anagement, total capital includes issued equity equity capital, share premium and

pital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holder of the company,

ges and security afforded by 2

debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio less than
comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings, excluding any dues to subsidiaries or group

all other reserves

Company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio as at 31 March 2023 is as follow: (% in millions)
' As af As at
Gearing Ratio
SRR e March 31,2023 March 31, 2023
Borrowings (Note 11A & 11B) (including current maturities) 119.77 297.19
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 5C) (0.66) {4.05)
Adjusted Net debt (A) 119.11 293:14
Equity 714.00 542.12
Total equity (B) 714.00 542.12
Total equity and net debt |C = (A+B)] 833.11 835.26
14.30% 35.10%

Gearing Ratio (A/C)

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial ¢ bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 20227

,«é (\
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40 Fair value of financial asscts and Labilities

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the
approximations of fair values:

carrying amounts and fair value of the company's financials instruments, other than

those with carrying amounts that are reasonable

(¥ in millions)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Amortized Cost FVTPL FvTocl ““’C";:““" FVTPL FVTOCI
Assets
Non Current Financial Assets .
- Loans 357 - - 6.30 - -
- Other financial assets 10 - - o.10 - -
Current Financial assets
- Loans 12.02 - - 8.71 - -
Liabilities
Non Current Financial liabilities t
- Borrowings 15.38 - - 221.30 - -
Current Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 104.39 - - 75.89 - -
= Other financial liabilities 3140 - - 23,08 - -

The following assumptions/ methods were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of trade receivables,
carrying values due to their shart term nature.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for asseis us at March 31, 2023

cash and cash equivalents, other current financial assets, trade payable and other current

financial liabilities are considered to be same as their

.

(2 in millions)

Fair value measurement using
——ar e

Quoted price in active Slr,gmﬁln::l Significant
market " :e“:‘ ¢ unobservable inputs
(Level 1) % ':‘::l % (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Loans - - 15.59
Other financial assets - - 0.10
Liabilitics measured at fair value
Borrowings - - 119.77
Other financial liabilities - - 3140
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022 (% in millions)
Fair value measurement using
Quoted price in active S;gnlric:: Significant
market e :'n: unobservable inputs
(Level 1) u:f:. ’;] (Level 3)

Assets measured at fair value
Loans - - 15.01
Other financial assets - - 0.10
Liabilities measured at fair value
Borrowings - -, 297.19

3 = 2398

Other financial linbilitics

{This space has been intentionally left blank]
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41  Disclosure related to key financial ratios:
) Current period Previous period
K 1 o, Reason for variance
ey Mnancial ratios Numerator Denominator 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 %o Variance eason for varianc

a. Current ratio Current assets Current liabilitics 1.68 1.78 6% NA

b. Debt-equity ratio Total deb Shareholder's equity 0.17 0.55 -69% a

c. Debt service coverage ratio Eamings Inval!ahle for Debt service** 1.00 0.93 % NA
deblt service®
Net profits before Avies

d. Retum on equity taxes — Preference shareh?lder's it 0.19 0.08 142% b
dividend equly.

. Inventory turnover Ratio f:;::ol’goods sdidar Average inventory 1.56 1.42 10% NA

I Trade receivables wmover ratio Net credit sales “‘“’.’“” Bevounls 1.94 1.52 28% ¢

receivable
g Trade payables tumover ratio Net credit purchases **/Ero8e frade 138 0.87 59% d
payables

h. Net capital urnover ratio Net sales Working capital 2.86 2,38 22% NA

i. Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales d 0.11 (.04 185% €

i- Return on capital employed Extning tikie Capital employed*** 0.19 0.10 90% f
interest and taxes

i IMV{T1) - MV(TD) {MV(T0) + Sum
x # N NA NA NA

k. Return on investment — Sum [C( [W(t) * €1 A

*Eaming for debi service = Net profit after taxes + Non-cash operating exg like dey and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of fixed assets

ele

**Debt service = Interest and lease payments + Principal repayments
***Capital employed = Tangible net worth + Total debt + Deferred tax liability

# Tl =End of time period t = Specific date falling between T1 and TO
T = Beginning of time period C(t) = Cash inflow, cash outflow on specific date

Wit} = Weight of the net cash flow {i.e. either net inflow or net outflow) on day *1°,

calculated as [T1 - 1]/ T1
{This space has been intentionally lefi blank]
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Explanation for variances more than 25%: -
4. Following latively lted into decreased in debt-equity ratio significantly:
- Due to better business conditions during the year, compuny has earned profit (after tax) of 2 96.80. Also, during the year, company has issued equity share on premium. These reasons
resulted into increased in equity by T 171.88 million,
- During the year, company has repaid the debt of 2 177.42 million (on net basis),

b, During the current year, wrnover of the company has increased by ¥ 238,30 million which resulied inio increase in profil before tax by T 86.49 million as company was able to take

benefil of fixed cost ch such as depreci ion costs, legal and professional costs, water snd electricity costs, vehicle costs ete. Furtier, average capital employed for
both years is apy ly same. These latively Ited into imy Nk in retum on equity,
¢.  During the year. due to better busi dition and normal situation (non-Covid 19 situati ), company was able 1o i turnover wh average receivable balance was

approximately same. This increase in sales is the major reason in improvement in trade receivables turnover ratio.

d.  Duc to increase in sales, purchases for current year are increased whereas average payable balance was approximately same. This increase in purchases is the major reason in

iy nt in trade payable wrnover ratio.

e During the current year, t of the company has i 1 by 2 238.30 million which resulted into increase in profit before tax by ¥ 86.49 million as company was able to take
benefit of fixed cost elements such as depreciation, communication costs, legal and professional tosts, water and electricity costs, vehicle costs etc. This increase in net profit is the major
reason in improvement in trade payable turnover ratio.

f During the current year, tumover of the company has increased by T 238,30 million which resulted into increase i profit before tax by 2 86.49 million as company was able lo take
benefit of fixed cost elements such as depreciation, communication costs, legal and professional costs, water and electricity costs, vehicle costs ete. Further, average capital employed for

both years is approximately same. These reasons latively Ited into imp tin retum on capital employed.

42 Employee stock i :
In 2012, the ulti holding pany instituted the ESOP Sct 2012 (the “ESOP 2012"}, Under the ESOP plan, the committee may grant awards of equity based stock options being
Growth options to the employees of ultimate holding c ipany and its subsidiaries. As per the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 102 “Share based P ", the Comg iving
the services shall measure the services received as an equity settled ion and required to record ip ion cost and disclose infi ion relating to the shares granted to the
employees of the Company, under the above Plan. Since, the plan is | ged and admini I by the ultimate holding company, the Company has taken stock option cost
pertains to options granted to the empl of the Company as caleulated by the ulti holding Company under Ind AS 102,

43 The Holding Company renders various administrative and services to ils subsidiary companies to facilitate the day-to-day operations. Accordingly, the ultimate holding

Company has charged INR 24.06 million (31 March 2022: INR 16.15 million) towards such services rendered during the year ended March 31, 2023,

44 Otber Statutory Information.

i) The Company does not hold any benami property under the B i T tions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and no proceeding has been initiated or is pending against the Company for
holding any benami property.

ii)  The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Ci y during the respective financial years

iii} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (1 fiaries) with the und ding that the | liary
shall: :

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Bencfici ies) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarics
iv) The Company has not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall;
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

v} The Company does not have any (ransaction which is not recarded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ).

vi) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.
Vii} The Company does not have any Scheme of Arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 10 237 of the Act,

45 Previous year figures have been regrouped’ reclassified, where necessary., to conform to this year's classification,

The accompanying noles are an i I part of the fi ial
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